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SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
Terry A. Hanson Mary Wegmann 
Finance & Information Technology Director Deputy Finance Director 

July 18, 2012 

Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors and Citizens 
County of Sheboygan 
508 New York Ave 
Sheboygan, Wisconsin 53081 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are pleased to submit the Annual Financial Report of the County of Sheboygan, Wisconsin for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 201 1 with the Independent Auditors' Report. Sheboygan County 
management is responsible for all information presented in the Annual Financial Report and, to the best 
of our knowledge, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner 
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account 
groups of the County. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the 
County's financial activities have been included. 

The Annual Financial Report was prepared to satisfy the reporting requirements for state and local 
governments issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which require that 
management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the Basic Financial 
Statements in the form of a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

The Annual Financial Report has been audited by the independent certified public accounting firm of 
Schenck SC. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of Sheboygan County are fiee from material misstatement. The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. Based on the results of the audit, Schenck SC have issued an 
unqualified ("clean") opinion for the year ended December 31,201 1. The independent auditors' report is 
located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act of 1 984, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-1 33, Audits of State and Local 
Governments and the State Single Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of 
Administration. Information related to the single audit, including the schedule of federal and state 
financial assistance, finding and recommendations, the independent auditors' reports on internal control 
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is available as a separate document. 

Copies of the Annual Financial Report and Single Audit Report may be accessed from our website at 
http:ll~~~.~~.shebovaan.wi.us/. 

The annual financial report is presented in three sections: 



The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of principal officials and the County's 
organizational chart. 

The financial section is prepared in accordance with the GASB 34 requirements by including the 
MD&A, the Basic Financial Statements including notes and the required supplementary information, The 
Basic Financial Statements include 'the government-wide financial statements that present an overview of 
the County's entire financial operations and the fund financial statements that present the financial 
information of each of the County's major funds, as well as non-major governmental, fiduciary, and other 
funds. Also included in this section is the independent auditors report on the financial statements and 
schedules. 

The supplemental information section contains additional financial information for the Internal Service 
Funds and Fiduciary Funds. 

Profile of the Government 

The County of Sheboygan is located in the eastern part of the state adjacent to Lake Michigan. It 
currently occupies 51 3 square miles. The County is comprised of 15 towns, 10 villages and three cities 
and is 50 miles north of Milwaukee. Several major county highways as well as US highways 141 and 43 
serve the County's transportation needs. Airline service to Chicago's O'Hare Airport, as well as other 
parts of Wisconsin, Illinois and Iowa are available at Sheboygan County Memorial Airport. The County 
continues to rank among the top ten quality of life metros in the state. 

The governing body of Sheboygan County is comprised of 25 County Board Supervisors, each saving 
two-year terms and elected by a majority of voters from their respective district. At the first session of 
each two-year term, the County Board elects a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson to preside over 
proceedings of the County Board for the next two years. 

Sheboygan County provides a full range of services, including police protection (Sheriffs Department), a 
county jail, nursing home care, highway and other infrastructure construction and repair, ownership and 
maintenance of the buildings at the University of Wisconsin Sheboygan campus, recreational facilities, 
marriage licensing, maintenance of vital records for births, deaths, real estate transfers, administration of 
the court system, district attorney's office, child support enforcement, operation of the municipal airport 
and other activities. Sheboygan County also maintains a close working relationship with the Eastern 
Shores Library System. 

Sheboygan County is required to adopt a budget in conformance with Chapter 65.90 of the Wisconsin 
State Statutes. Adoption of the budget for the ensuing year takes place at the November County Board 
meeting. Each annual budget is adopted by appropriation units within departments. Departments are also 
aggregated into fund groupings. Appropriation units have been designated as, "Wages & Benefits", 
"Operating Expenses", "Interdepartmental Charges", and "Capital Outlay". Departments may transfer 
funds within appropriation units as they see fit. Transfers between appropriation units of the same 
department or between departments, however, need Finance Committee approval. 

Local Economy 

The County has experienced very modest gains in equalized value over the past five years of .33%; 
equalized valuation (TID's out) of $8,547,306,000 in 2007 to $8,575,432,000 in 201 1. The population, as 
estimated is 1 15,569 with a per capita household income of $5 1,127 (as reported by the US Census 
Bureau - 20 1 0 Census). 



As with most areas of the country, Sheboygan County has been affected by the recent economic 
downtown. The December unemployment rate was 6.4% (as reported by the Wisconsin Department of 
Workforce Development). The County continues to have a diversified work force. Kohler Company and 
Bernis Manufacturing are international leaders in their respective industry sectors. Sargento Foods and 
Johnsonville Sausage are likewise nationally-respected firms as is Acuity Mutual Insurance. Kohler 
Company remains our largest employer. 

Sheboygan County remains a top tourism destination with attractions of world-class golf, Lake Micbigan 
sport fishing, road racing and summer festivals. Whistling Straits hosted the senior PGA golf tournament 
in August of 20 10 and the LPGA tournament was hosted at Black Wolf Run in early July of 20 12. 

Sheboygan County maintains a fund balance policy which restricts the unassigned fund balance to 
between five and ten percent of the budgeted expenditures for the upcoming budget year. 

The County maintains a five-year capital improvement plan. The plan identifies major capital projects 
and the methods to finance them. The plan for the year 20 12 includes major development at the County 
airport and various infrastructure projects at Highway and Information Technology to name a few. 

Discretionary program evaluations and prioritizations (PEPC) were completed in May of 2009 and will be 
a valuable tool during the challenging budgeting process ahead. Operational studies have been completed 
at the Health Care Centers, the Department of Health & Human Services, the Sheriffs Department, 
Highway Department, Child Support and Information Systems. Departments scheduled for review for 
20 12 include the Clerk of Courts and Human Resources. These studies have proved to be a valuable tool 
to maximize operational efficiencies. 
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a CPAs AND SO MUCH MORE. l 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF 
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

a To the County Board 

! 
Sheboygan County, Wisconsin 

• We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type • activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Sheboygan County, Wisconsin ("the 

a County") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the County's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 

a Sheboygan County, Wisconsin's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial 

a statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the County as of December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund 
and the public health and human services special revenue fund for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

• As described in Note 1.C., the County has implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 

a Governmental Fund Type Definitions, for the fiscal year ended December 31,201 1. 

• In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 16, 2012, on our 

a consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 

a report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 

a results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

a Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Appleton Fond du Lac Green Bay Manitowoc Milwaukee Oshkosh Sheboygan Stevens Point Wausau 

800-236-2246 schencksc.com 

• Seh 9 n d  sc 



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of employer contributions on pages 
10 through 19 and 61 through 62 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's response to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on tine financial siatements that colieciively comprise 
the County's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and the financial information listed in the 
table of contents as supplemental information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the financial statements. The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 

Certified Public Accountants 
Green Bay, Wisconsin 
July 16, 2012 
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SHEBOYGAN COUNTY 
Terry Hanson Mary Wegmann 
Finance & Information Technology Director Deputy Finance Director 

U" 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 

Required Supplementary Information 

This section of the County of Sheboygan's (County) annual financial report provides a narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the year ended December 31, 201 1. We hope that the 
information presented here, in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, provides you with a clearer picture of the 
County's overall fmancial status. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The assets of the County exceeded liabilities at the close of the fiscal year 201 1 by $1 18 million (net assets). 
Of this amount, $1 5 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors, $2 million is restricted for specific purpose (restricted net assets), and $102 million is invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt. 
The County's total net assets increased by $4,774,522. 

Governmental Activities 

In total, revenues exceeded expenses by $8.1 million on a government-wide basis. 
General revenues and transfers for governmental activities were $52.9 million. Of this amount, 
approximately 83% ($44.1 million) was attributable to property taxes. 
Program revenues for governmental activities were $42 million. Of this amount, $28.4 million or 67.5% was 
attributable to operating grants and contributions. Charges for services accounted for $1 1.5 million or 
27.5%. Capital contributions were $2 million or 5% of program revenues. 
Total expenses for governmental activities amounted to $87 million. General Government accounted for 
$17.7 million or 20.5% of the total; Public Safety $17.2 million or 19.6%; Public Works $16.8 million or 
19.3%; Public Health & Human Services $30.6 million or 35.2%; Resources & Development $3 million or 
3.4%; Education $0.6 million or about 0.7% and interest on long-term debt $1 .l million or 1.3%. 

Business-Type Activities (Health Care Centers) 

In total, expenses exceeded revenues by $3.3 million. 
General revenues for business-type activities were $1.3 million. Of this amount, approximately 99% or $1.3 
million was attributable to property taxes. 
Program revenues for business-type activities were $1 3 million. Of this amount, $1.4 million or 1 1 % was 
attributable to operating grants and contributions while charges for services accounted for $1 1.6 million or 
89%. 
Total expenses for business-type activities amounted to $16.4 million. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 
Required Supplementary Information 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements. The 
County's basic financial statements comprise three components 1) Government-wide financial statements 2) Fund 
financial statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. Required Supplemental Information is included 
in addition to the basic financial statements. 

The illustration below depicts the required components of the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide I Fund Financial Notes to the 
Financial Statements flnandal 

Statements Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of County finances, 
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement o f  net assets presents information on all County assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 
two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement o f  activities presents information showing how net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. 
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing of related cashflows. Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended 
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, public works, public health and 
human services, education, and resources & development. The business-type activities of the County include the 
health care centers (nursing homes). 

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be 
divided into three categories: governmentalfinds, proprietary&nds andfiduciaryfinds. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 
Required Supplementary Information 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govement-wide financial statements, governmental 
funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outjlows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a county's 
near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the 
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and 
the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The County maintains 6 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental 
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
for the General Fund, the Public Health & Human Services Special Revenue Fund, the Capital Projects Fund and the 
Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the community development and 
public safety special revenue funds are reported as a non-major funds. 

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. EnterpriseJitnds are used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for 
the Health Care Centers (nursing homes). Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. 

Internal Service Jitnds are used to account for the financing of public works; for the County's uninsured risk 
management activities; for general insurance and phones; and for the financing of information technology and 
printing services. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, 
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. Rocky Knoll and Sunny Ridge are considered to be major funds of the County. The County's three internal 
service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary 
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not 
available to support the County's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for 
proprietary funds. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Required Supplemental Information is presented concerning the County's General Fund budgetary comparison 
and the Public Health & Human Services budgetary comparison, The County adopts an annual appropriated budget 
for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate 
compliance with this budget. In addition, a budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the Public Health 
& Human Services special revenue fund for it was determined to be a major governmental fund. These schedules 
can be found in the Basic Financial Statements. The required supplemental information section presents schedules 
detailing the County's funding progress and employee contributions for other postemployment benefits and internal 
service funds included with the governmental activities on the Government-Wide statements. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) 
Required Supplementary Information 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

i I , * . 3  zt: is :.*,i..; 1. A ",+ so.*+2p-= : ." " . 
' 'Bdf"As3eh 7 r *..I,* w ~ y ~ ~ ~ p + ~ ~ . . ~ s * a ~ ~ ~  + , ? ~ q ~ y  

December 31,201 1 and 2010 I 

(Amounts expressed in $1,000) 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
201 1 2010 201 1 201a 201 1 20 10 

Assets: 
Current and other assets $ 96,156 $ 114,296 $ 2,268 $ 6,217 $ 98,424 $ 120,513 
Capital assets 113,732 1 10,006 9,083 9,65 1 122,815 119,657 

Total Assets 
Ph 

209,888 224,302 11,351 15,868 221,239 240,170 

Liabilities: 
Non-current liabilities 46,897 5 1,405 1,979 2,271 48,876 53,676 
Other liabilities 52,798 70,778 1,349 2,274 54,147 73,052 

Total Liabilities 99,695 122,183 3,328 4,545 103,023 126,728 

Net Assets: 
Invested in capital assets 

net of  related debt 93,177 88,965 9,083 9,65 1 102,260 98,6 16 
Restricted 1,994 757 1,994 757 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 15,022 12,397 (1,060) 1,672 13,962 14,069 

Total Net Assets $ 110,193 $ 102,119 $ 8,023 $ 11,323 $ 118,216 $ 113,442 

Analysis of Net Assets 
Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the County, 
assets exceeded liabilities by $1 18 million at the close of fiscal year 201 1. At the end of fiscal year 201 1 the County 
had positive balances in all three categories of net assets. 

The largest portion of the County's net assets (86.5%) reflects its investment of $102 million in capital assets (e.g. 
land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The 
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. 

Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot 
be liquidated for these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the County's net assets represents unrestricted net assets of $15 million (13%) that may be 
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The remaining portion of the County's 
net assets, $2 million (1.8) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
External restrictions include those imposed by grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of other governments, or 
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or legislation, including those passed by the County 
itself. 
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(Amounts expressed in $1.000) 
I 

Governmental Activities Business-typ e Activities Total 
201 1 2010 201 1 2010 201 1 20t0 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 11,543 $ 8,578 $ 11,641 $ 12,161 $ 23,184 $ 20,739 
Operating grants & 
contributions 
Capital 
contributions 

Total program 
revenues 

General revenues: 
Property tax 
Interest 
Other taxes 
Other 

Total general 
revenues 

Total Revenues 93,67 1 88,663 14,381 15,841 108,052 104,503 

Expenses : 
General government 17,749 1 1,980 
Public safety 17,060 19,067 
Public works 16,819 15,599 
Public health and 

human services 30,562 32,133 
Education 572 1,372 
Resources & 
development 2,975 2,669 

Interest on long- 
term debt 1,091 1,417 
Health care centers 16,450 17,487 16,450 17,487 

Total Expenses 86,828 84,237 16,450 17,487 103,278 101,724 

Excess(deficiency ) before 
transfers 6,843 4,426 (2,069) ( 1,646) 4,774 2,779 

Transfers 1,231 1,642 (1,231) (1,642) 
specrat itern - LOSS 

on sale of capital (777) (777) 
Change in net assets 8,074 6,068 (3,300) (4,065) 4,774 2,002 

Net assets at 
beginning of y ear 102,119 96,05 1 1 1,323 15,388 1 13,442 11 1,439 
Net assets at end of 

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets 

The County's total net assets, on a government-wide basis, increased by $4.8 million during the current fiscal year. 

Governmental activities 

Governmental activities increased the County's net assets by $8.1 million. 

Revenue 

The County's governmental activities rely on several sources of revenue to fmance ongoing operations. Operating 
grants and contributions comprised the largest program revenue source for the County followed by charges for 
services. Operating grants and contributions are monies received from parties outside the County and are generally 
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restricted to one or more specific programs. Examples of operating grants and contributions include State and 
Federal revenue for highway maintenance programs and for public health and human services programs. 

Charges for services are revenues that arise from charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided. Examples of the types of services that fall under this 
category include fines & forfeitures, planning services, register of deeds fees, and charges to clients of Health & 
Human Services. At the end of FY 201 1, total revenue for the governmental activities, not including transfers from 
the business-type activities, was approximately $93.6 million. 

Expenses 

Total expenses for governmental activities (not including transfers) were $87 million. The majority of these expenses 
were spent for Public Health & Human Services, Public Works and Public Safety. Of the total expenses, 
approximately $44.1 million, or 5 1 %, were ultimately financed by property taxes. 

Transfers 

Transfers from business-type activities to governmental activities totaled $1.2. These transfers in increased net 
assets. 

Business-type Activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net assets by approximately $3.3 million. 

Revenue 

The County had only one business-type entity remaining at December 3 1, 201 1 : Rocky Knoll Health Care Center. 
Sunny Ridge Health Care Center was sold in June of 2010. The remaining assets were transferred to the General 
Fund in March of 201 1. At December 3 1, 201 1, the total revenues for the business-type activities were $14.4 
million. Ln keeping with the intent of recovering all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges, business-type activities reported charges for services as their largest source of revenue. Operating grants and 
contributions was the other program revenue source for business-type activities. 

Expenses 

At the end of fiscal year 201 1, the business-type activities reported total operating expenses of $16.5 million. The 
program revenues (charges for services and operating grants and contributions) and miscellaneous general revenue 
financed 79% of the expense with budgeted tax levy of $1.3 million and the loss of $3.3 million making up the 
difference. 

Transfers 

Transfers from business-type activities to governmental activities totaled $1.2. These transfers out decreased net 
assets. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 

The County uses f h d  accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
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Governmental Funds 

The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances 
of resources of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In 
particular, assigned and unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources 
available for disbursement at the end of the fiscal year. Types of major governmental funds reported by the County 
include the General Fund, Public Health & Human Services Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Funds 
(combined) and the Debt Service Funds (combined). Nonrnajor governmental funds include the Revolving Loan and 
Public Safety Special Revenue Funds,. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported the combined ending fund balance 
of $24.5 million, a decrease of $916 thousand in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $13.6 million of this 
total amount constitutes assigned and unassigned fund balance that is available for spending and the County's 
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable, restricted or committed to indicate that it is not available 
for new spending because it has already been committed for the following 

1) for various individual fund commitments approved by the County Board of $197,284, 

2) for prepayments that benefit periods beyond the end of the current year of $1 91,6 10, 

3) for non-liquid delinquent taxes of $3,697,709, 

4) for various individual funds restricted for jail and land records improvements of $9,884 and $440,014 
respectively 

5) for payment of principal and interest of $46,471, 

6) for economic development of $837,260 and 

7) for capital project expenditure of $5,570,535. 

The following graph shows the breakdown of expenditures by function for the governmental funds: 

Interest & 

Safety 
.% 

-ks 
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GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, assigned fund 
balance was $491,373 and unassigned fund balance was $12,053,878 while total fund balance was $16,986,203. As 
a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be usehl to compare both assigned and unassigned knd balance 
and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Assigned and unassigned fund balance of $12,545,251 represents 
36% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance of $16,986,203 represents 49% of that same 
amount. 

During the current year, the County's General fund balance increased by $5,790,388. Performance was better than 
expected because of the following: 

delay of non-motorized transportation projects 
gain on mark to market of investments 
interest and penalty on taxes 
employee contribution to retirement 
decreased software maintenance costs 
decreased food preparation costs 
utility cost savings 
unspent contingency funds 
transfer from other funds, mainly due to the closure of Sunny Ridge Nursing Home and transfer of equity to 
the general fund and a one-time transfer from Public Health & Human Services. 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

The Public Health and Human Services Fund is devoted to providing assistance to the public in a wide array of 
services and is the largest operating department in the County. There are six divisions; Community Programs, 
Human Service Administration, Aging and Disability Resource Center, Public Health, Social Services and Economic 
Support. Each division has a number of programs designed to fill specific community needs. 

The total 201 1 expenditures for this fund were $29.8 million or 39% of all governmental expenditures. The primary 
source of support is intergovernmental revenue, providing $15 million or 50% of the revenue needed to support the 
programs. Charges for services and other revenue provided $2.8 million in revenue or 9% of total expenditures. The 
remaining support needed was provided by tax levy of $13.5 million or 45% of total expenditures. 1 
Resolution 17 (adopted 1/24/2012) authorized and directed the Finance Committee and Finance Director to make a 
one-time transfer of sums from the Health & Human Services fund balance to the County's general fund balance. 
The fund balance remaining after the transfer of $3,780,902 is $1,095,549. $4,514 of this fund balance is non- 
spendable and $1,09 1,035 is assigned. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 1 

The County's proprietary hnds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for both Rocky Knoll 
Health Care Center and Sunny Ridge. Sunny Ridge financial information for 201 1 provides results on the transfer of 
the remaining financial assets to the General Fund. Internal Service Funds are also proprietary funds and the results 
for these hnds are combined into a single-column, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. 
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Rocky Knoll 

Total operating expenses in 20 1 1 were $16.5 million, compared to $16.7 million for 201 0. Operating revenues were 
$1 1.6 million compared to $12.1 million in 201 0. Rocky Knoll's net assets decreased by $2.1 in 201 1. Budgeted tax 
levy in 20 1 1 was $1.3 million. 

The decrease in net assets for Rocky Knoll may be explained as follows: 

Health care services revenue continues to decline due to low census. 
Unexpected repairs of elevator and chiller 
Tax levy support decreased $530,189 or 29% from 2010. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

The County maintains fiduciary funds for the monetary assets of the residents of Rocky Knoll for burial trusts, 
inmate trusts, etc. Fiduciary fund balances are not included in the government-wide statement of net assets. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At December 3 1, 201 1, the County's capital assets for both the governmental and business-type activities amounted 
to $122.8 million, net of accumulated depreciation of $1 32 million. The investment in capital assets includes land, 
construction in progress, structures and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure (including roads and bridges). 
The following list details the budgeted expenditures for major capital projects in FY 201 1, (not reduced for grants or 
other offsetting reimbursements): 

Governmental Activities 

$1.8 million for improvements at the Sheboygan County airport 
$4.4 million for road improvements 
$1. Million for Computer Aided Dispatch and Record Management Software (CADIRMS), mobile squad 
system replacement and intercom system replacement at the detention 
$1 00 thousand for Sheboygan River clean-up 
$1 60 thousand for voiceldata conversion at Rocky Knoll Health Care Center 
$338 thousand for general building improvements (AIC unit replacements, roof replacements, courthouse 
generator and upgrade of fuel tanks 

Additional Information about Capital Assets 

For government-wide financial statement presentation, governmental fund depreciable capital assets were 
depreciated fiom acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial statements record 
capital asset purchases as expenditures. Infrastructure assets are depreciated beginning in the year' following. 
completion of construction. 

Additional information about the County's capital assets can be found in the notes to basic financial statements. 
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Debt Administration 

At December 3 1,201 1, the County had total long-term obligations outstanding of $40.5 million. Of this amount 
$29.8 million pertains to general obligation bonds ($5.4 million due within one year). The remainder relates to 
insurance and other reserves, compensated absences and other postemployment plans. 

I The County's credit rating on its bonded program is as follows: 

I Moody's Standard & Poor's Fitch IBCA, Duff & Phelps 
I General Obligation Bonds Aa 1 Not Rated Not Rated 
I 

I , This Aal rating with a negative outlook reflects the County's moderately sized tax base, manageable debt profile 
with rapid principal amortization and narrowed financial operations due to present economic conditions. Additional 

I information can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

I Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the County's finances and to demonstrate the County's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact the Finance Director, County 
of Sheboygan, located at 508 New York Avenue, Sheboygan, Wisconsin, 5308 1. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Net Assets 

Government- Wide Governmental Business-Type 
December 31, 201 1 Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash & Investments 
Receivables (net) 

Due From External Parties 

Internal Balances 

Prepaids & Inventory 

Noncurrent Assets 

Long Term Receivables 
Debt Diswunt/Premiums 

Capital Assets 

Land 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Infrastmcture 

Const~ction in Progress 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts1 Interest Payable 

A c c ~ e d  Liabilities 

A c c ~ e d  Compensation 
Deposits 

Unearned Revenue 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 
Due In More Than One Year 

Insurance and Other Reserves 

Unamoritized Bond PremlDisc 

Total Liabilties 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

Restricted For: 

Debt Service 
Land Records 
Jail Assessment 

Community Development 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

Total Net Assets 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Government- Wide Statement of Activities 

For rhe Year Ended December 31,ZOlZ 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assets 
Charges Operating Primary Government 

for Grants and Capital Governmental Business-Type 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Primary Government 
Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 

Public Wwks 
Public Health and Human Services 

Resources and Development 
Education 

Interest on Long-term Debt 

Business-Type Activities: 

Health Care Centers 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues 

Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Property Taxes, levied for debt service 

Other Taxes 

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs 

Investment Earnings Not Related to Specific Programs 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 

Miscellaneous 

Transfers (net) 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Changes in Net Assets 
Net Assets - Beginning 
Net Assets - Ending 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI Major Funds 
Balance Sheet Public Health Other Total 

Governmental Funds 
December 31, 201 1 

and Human Debt Capital Governmental Governmental 
General Services Service Proiects Fund Funds 

Assets 
Cash 8 Investments 

Receivables, net 
Due From Other Funds 

Due From Other Govt 

Prepaids 8 Inventory 
Long Term Receivables, net 

Total Assets 

Liabilities & Fund Balances 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 

Due to Other Funds 
Accrued Compensation 

Deposits 
Deferred Revenue 

Insurance and Other Reserves 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 

Restricted 
Committed 

Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Reconciliation of Governmental Balance Sheet 

to the Government- Wide Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 201 1 

Governmental Fund Balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 

are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the funds 

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and 
therefore are deferred in the funds 

Government Funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities 

Receivable or (payable) to a business-type activity due to the lookback 
adjustment and consolidation of internal service funds 

Some liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds 

Internal service fund activities included in governmental activities 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of the statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Major Funds 

Changes in Fund Balances Public Health Other Total 

Governmental Funds and Human Debt Capital Governmental Governmental 
For the Year Ended December 31.201 1 General Services Service Proiects Funds Funds 

Revenues 
Property Taxes 
Other Taxes 

Intergovernmental Revenue 
Licenses and Permits 

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 

Public Charges for Services 
Interest and Other Revenue 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General Government 

Public Safety 
Public Works 

Public Heatth and Human Services 

Resources and Development 

Education 
Debt Service: 

Principal 

lnterest and Other Charges 

Capital Outlay 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Capital Leases 

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Net Change in Fund Balances 
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning 
Fund Balances - Ending 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Government- Wide Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31,2011 

Governmental change in fund Balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 

are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the Statement of 
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated lives and reported 
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded (fell 
short of) depreciation in the current period. 

Governmental funds (Highway) may report capital costs for infrastructure 
improvements as current operating expenses. The Statement of Activities will report 
these costs as assets. This is the amount of those adjustments. 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds but reduces liabilities in the statement of 
net assets. This is the amount of repayments and accrued 
interest expense. 

Capital loan proceeds are reported as an other financing source 
in the governmental funds but increases liabilities in the 
statement of net assets. This is the amount of capital lease 
proceeds. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are 
not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain 
activities, such as insurance and telecommunications, to certain funds. The net 
revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental 
activities. 

Debt issuance cost is a current expense in governmental funds, but is amortized 
over multiple years in the government-wide statements; this entry reflects the 
difference. 

Additional revenue or expense due to internal service fund look-back adjustments 
must be recognized in the government-wide statements. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Budgetary Comparison Statement 

General Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 I 

Actual Amounts Variance With 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis Final Budget 

Original Final (See Note 3A) Positive (Negative) 

Budgetary Fund Balance, January 1 $ 17,282,700 $ 14,106,104 $ 11,195,815 

Resources (Inflows): 
Property, Other Taxes 
Intergovernmental Revenue 
Licenses and Permits 
Fines. Forfeits & Penalties 
Public Charges for Services 
Interest & Other Revenue 
Transfers from Other Funds 
Amounts Available for Appropriation 

Charges to Appropriations (Oufflows): 
Education 

UW Extension 
UW Sheboygan 

General Government 
Building Services 
Clerk of Courts 
Coroner 
County Board, Adm Coordinator 
County Clerk & Elections 
District Attorney 
Family Court Commissioner 
Finance 
Human Resources 
Legal, Corporation Counsel 
Register of Deeds 
Treasurer 

Public Health & Human Services 
Child Support 
Veteran's Commission 
Veteran's Service 

Public Safety 
Sheriff 

Public Works 
Airport 

Resources & Development 
Land & Water Conservation 
Planning & Resources 

Nondepartmental 
Contingency 
Funding for Eastern Shores 
Funding for Economic Development 
Funding for Tourism 
Funding for Museum Grant 
Funding for Villages and Towns 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers to Other Funds 235,525 235,525 59,369 176,156- 

Total Charges to Appropriations 37,286,177 44,312,202 34,903,925 9,408,277 
Budgetary Fund Balance, December 31 $ 17,076,341 $ 14,213,465 $ 16,986,203 $ 5,683,027 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Budgetary Comparison Statement 

Public Health and Human Services Special Revenue Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 1 

Actual Amounts Variance With 
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis Final Budget 

Original Final (See Note 3A) Positive (Negative) 

Budgetary Fund Balance, January 1 $ 982,496 $ 465,810 $ 3,453,556 

Resources (Inflows): 
Property, Other Taxes 13,539,682 13,539,682 13,539,682 
Intergovernmental Revenue 15,239,531 15,239,531 14,919,834 (31 9,697) 
Licenses and Permits 247,780 247,780 267,079 19,299 
Public Charges for Services 2,568,905 2,568,905 2,261,655 (307,250) 
Interest & Other Revenue 207,432 207,432 251,085 43,653 

Amounts Available for Appropriation 31,803,330 31,803,330 31,239,335 (563,995) 

Charges to Appropriations (Oufflows): 
Public Health & Human Services 

Community Programs 14,316,474 14,212,231 13,496,803 71 5,428 
Economic Support 3,262,256 3,234.385 2,871,567 362,818 
H&HS Administration 1,541 112,734 24,011 88,723 
Office on Aging 1,321,483 1,313,888 1,289,931 23,957 
Public Health 3,372,101 3,357,726 3,236,746 120,980 
Social Services 9,529,475 9,467,713 8,897,382 570,331 
Transfers to Other Funds 3,780,902 (3,780,902) 

Total Charges to Appropriations 31,803,330 31,698,677 33,597,342 (1,898,665) 

Budgetary Fund Balance, December 31 $ 982,496 $ 570,463 $ 1,095,549 $ (2,462,660) 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Net Assets Business-type Activity Governmental 

Proprietary Funds Enterprise Fund Activities - 
December 31,201 1 Rocky Knoll Internal Service Funds 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash & tnvestments 
Receivables (net) 

Due From Other Governments 

Prepaids 8 Inventory 

Total current assets 

Capital assets: 
Land 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Accrued Compensation 

Deferred Revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 

Due In More Than One Year 

Insurance and Other Reserves 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total Liabilties 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

Total Net Assets 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Reconciliation of Proprietary Balance Sheet 

to the Government- Wide Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 201 1 

Proprietary fund balances $8,406,046 

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide statement of net 

assets are different because: 

Receivable (payable) due to the look-back adjustment resulting from 
consolidation of the internal service funds 

Net assets of business-type activities $8,022'8 74 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds Rocky Sunny 

For the Year Ended December 31.201 1 Knoll Ridee Total 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 

Intergovernmental charges for services 

Licenses and permits 

lnterdepartmental revenue 

Miscellaneous operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Personnel related 

Purchased services 

Repairs 8 maintenance 

General operating 

lnterdepartmental expenses 

Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 
Operating (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Intergovernmental transfer program 

lntergovernmental contractslgrants 

Property tax appropriation 

Investment income 

Rental income 

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
Capital contributions - County 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Change in net assets 
Total Net Assets - Beginning 
Total Net Assets - Ending 

Governmental 

Activities - 
Internal 

Service Funds 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Reconciliation of Statement of Proprietary Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Fund Net Assets 
to the Government- Wide Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31,2011 

Proprietary change in net assets 

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide statement of activities 

are different because: 

Change in revenue or expense due to the look-back adjustment resulting from 
consolidation of the internal service funds 

Change in net assets of business-type activities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



County of Sheboygan, WZ 
Statement of  Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31,201 1 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers and users 

Receipts from interfund services provided 

Other operating cash receipts 

Payments to suppliers 

Other sources (uses) of cash 

Payments to employees 

Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Intergovernmental contracts/grants 

Property tax appropriation received 

Transfer in 

Transfer out 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 

financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from sale of equipment 

Purchases of capital assets 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

Investment income 

Rental income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in 

cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 

Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Rocky Sunny 
Knoll Ridge Total 

Governmental 
Activites - 

Internal 
Service Funds 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 I 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers and users 

Receipts from interfund services provided 

Other operating cash receipts 

Payments to suppliers 

Other sources (uses) of cash 

Payments to employees 

Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Intergovernmental contracwgrants 

Property tax appropriation received 

Transfer in 

Transfer out 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 

financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from sale of equipment 

Purchases of capital assets 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

Investment income 

Rental income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in 

cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 

Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmendal 
Activites - 

Rocky Sunny Internal 
Knoll Ridge Total Service Funds 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 
December 31. 201 I 

Agency 
Funds 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 8 Investments 

Receivables (net) 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Deposits 
Due to Other Governments 

Total Liabilities 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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COUNTY OF SHEBOYGAN, WISCONSIN 

NOTES TO'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,201 1 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Sheboygan County (the County) was incorporated in December 1838 and operates under the provisions of the 
Wisconsin State Statutes, Chapter 59. The County is governed by a 34-member County Board. The powers 
and duties of the County Board are to coordinate and direct all administrative and management functions of 
the county government not otherwise vested by law in boards or commissions or in other elected officials. 
The various standing committees appoint all department heads and members of all boards and commissions, 
which are then subject to County Board confirmation. 

The County provides many functions and services to citizens, including law enforcement, administration of 
justice, health care, social services, recreation and cultural activities, planning and zoning, education and 
general administrative services. In addition, the County operates a transportation system (maintaining 452 
miles of County owned road and 170 miles of State highways under a maintenance contract with the State) 
and a corporate/transport airport. 

The accounting policies of the County conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the County are described below. 

A. report in^ Entity 

The reporting entity for the County consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the 
primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate 
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The 
primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's 
government body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary 
government may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary 
government. The County does not include any component units in these financial statements. 

B. Related Or~anization 

Sheboygan County is a member of the multicounty federated library system named Eastern Shores Library 
System. The Eastern Shores Library System is a related party organization of both Sheboygan and Ozaukee 
County. Funding for this organization comes primarily from the State of Wisconsin, Sheboygan County and 
Ozaukee County. Since the Eastern Shores Library System is a related party organization of multiple 
counties and exercises substantial control of its own operations, it is not considered to be a component unit of 
Sheboygan County. 



As a member of Eastern Shores Library System, Sheboygan County has the authority to appoint members to 
the Library System Board. The membership of the Library System Board is allocated among the member 
counties in the same proportion as the county's population is to the total population of all the member 
counties. Each County appoints a county board member to the Library System board. In addition, ane of the 
members is a member of the Mead Public Library Board, the library system's resource library. The remaining 
Library System Board members are representatives of the member library boards and public members at 
large. 

Payments to the Eastern Shores Library System represent related party transactions, which are not considered 
to be "arms length transactions". In 201 1, payments from Sheboygan County to the Library System totaled 
$1,160,986. Financial statements of the Eastern Shores Library System can be obtained by contacting the 
Library System at: (920) 208-4900. 

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statment of 
Activities. These statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County. 
Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset 
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. 
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements provide detailed information on all governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary 
funds. Governmental funds include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projact funds. 
Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service funds. Internal service funds are exempt from the 
major fund reporting requirements and are aggregated and reported as a single column on the proprietary 
statement and are included under "Governmental Activities" on the Government-wide Statement of Net 
Assets. Fiduciary hnds are also exempt from major fund reporting and are reported as a single column on the 
fiduciary statements. Fiduciary funds are not included in the Government-wide Statements of Net Assets. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the County's primary operating fimd. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Public Health and Human Services Fund - The Public Health and Human Services Fund is used to account 
for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital grants) that are legally restricted for the 
nutritional, physical, social, mental and economic needs of individual and families. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, general long-term principal, interest and related costs, but excludes debt serviced by proprietary 
funds. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial resources, which are used 
for all acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

The County reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 



Community Development Fund - The Community Development Fund is used to account for grant proceeds 
and related activity used to create, retain and expand business and investment in Sheboygan County. 

Public Safetv Fund - The Public Safety Fund provides for additional improvements to the Law Enforcement 
Unit through donations and miscellaneous equipment sales. 

The County reports the following major proprietary fund: 

Rocky Knoll - Rocky Knoll Health Care Facility is financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
enterprises where the intent is that the costs of providing skilled nursing care be recovered primarily through 
user charges and that a periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred andlor net income is 
appropriate. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

Internal service funds account for information systems, highway maintenance, insurance and printing services 
provided to other departments or agencies of the County, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement 
basis. 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, and other governments. 

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions for the year ended December 31, 201 1. The County reports the following special revenue funds, 
including the purpose and significant revenue source: 

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting, 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and agency funds. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Significant Revenues 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental grants 
Donations 
Sale of equipment 

Intergovernmental Grants 

Fund 
Public Health & 
Human Services 

Public Safety Fund 
Community Development 
Fund 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources measurement focus 
and the modzjied accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible with the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

Purpose 
Provide essential human services to County 
residents. 
Provide additional improvements to the 
County's Law Enforcement Unit 
Provide low interest loans to County 
businesses 



- .  

susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

As a general rule the effect of interfbd activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between various fimctions of the govemment, whose 
eliminations would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 )  charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

The revenues and expenses shown on the proprietary fund statements are identified as either operating or 
nonoperating. Operating revenues and expenses generally result ffom providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the County's enterprise funds are charges to customers for services. Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources are they are needed. 

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets/Eauity 

1. Cash and Investments 

The County's deposits consist of cash on hand as well as demand deposits with financial institutions. 

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and 
instrumentalities, obligations of Wisconsin governmental units, time deposits with maturities of less than 
three years in any financial institution in Wisconsin, the State of Wisconsin Local Government 
Investment Pool, any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest 
rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency, securities of an open-end management 
investment company or investment trust subject to various conditions and investment options and 
repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions. The County's adopted 
investment policy is more restrictive than the state statutes in that it limits money market funds to 
maturities of less than one year and corporate debt obligations to 20% of total investible assets ad lor  5% 
of total investible assets with any one corporate issuer. 

Investments are reported at fair market value. Fair market value is the amount at which a financial 
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less (except for restricted assets) are considered to be cash equivalents. 

2. Receivables and Pavables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds h r  goods 
provided or services rendered. The fund financial statements classify these receivables and payables as 
"Due fiom other Funds" or "Due to Other Funds". Amounts reported in the funds as interfund 
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assets/liabilities are eliminated in the governmental and business-type columns of the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amount due between governmental and business-type 
activities which is shown as internal balances. 

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

The County's property taxes are levied on or before December 31 on the equalized valuation as of the 
prior January 1 for all general property located in the County. The taxes are due and payable in the 
following year. If not collected by July 31" the delinquent property taxes are recorded as a receivable and 
deferred revenue in the General Fund. Delinquent property taxes are recognized as revenue when 
collected. Simple interest and penalty of 1 !h percent per month on delinquent property taxes are assessed 
by the County and recognized as revenue when received. 

The County purchases uncollected property taxes from other taxing authorities typically through the last 
day of January of each year. At this time a settlement process between the county treasurer and local 
treasurers determines the amount due the various taxing districts. Tax collection becomes the 
responsibility of the County and taxes receivable represent unpaid taxes levied for all taxing entities 
within the County. 

On August 3 1, the tax lien date, all unpaid taxes are reflected as tax certificates. 

Delinquent property taxes purchased from other taxing authorities are shown as nonspendable fund 
balance at year-end. Delinquent property taxes levied by the County are shown as deferred revenue and 
are excluded from the fund balance until collected. 

3. Inventories and Prepayments 

Inventories of governmental and proprietary funds are valued a cost, which approximates market, using 
the fmt-inlfirst-out method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as 
expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed. Therefore, the inventory asset amount is not 
available for appropriation and is offset by a fund balance reserve account. 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current year are 
recorded as prepayments in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepayments in the 
governmental funds are not available for appropriation and the balance is offset by nonspendable fund 
balance. 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, land and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the government-w ide financial statements. Assets are capitalized when they have an estimated useful 
life of more than one year and a unit cost of $5,000 or more except for the Health Care Centas, which 
must have a unit cost of $1,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
asset lives are not capitalized. 

Exhaustible capital assets of the primary government are depreciated on the straight-line method over the 
asset's useful life. Depreciation expense is recorded in the government-wide financial statements as well 
as the proprietary funds. There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress. 
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Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings 
Building and other improvements 
Infrastructure 
Infrastructure improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Vehicles 

25 - 40 years 
15 years 

15 - 50 years 
5 - 15 years 
5 - 20 years 

3 - 4 years 

5. Compensated Absences 

The County compensates all employees upon termination for unused vacation time. Generally, vacation 
pay is earned during one calendar year, used in the following calendar year and is forfeited if not used 
during that period. 

All County union employees except Local 1749 (Highway Department) are entitled to sick leave at a rate 
of one day per month of fdl-time service up to a maximum of 960 hours. Union employees are 
compensated for the unused sick leave upon termination. Local 1749 (Highway Department) and all non- 
union employees do not accumulate sick leave (short and long-term disability plans are provided). Thus, 
they receive no sick leave compensation upon retirement. 

Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used. 
Accumulated vacation and sick leave liabilities at December 31, 201 1, are determined on the basis of 
current salary in the government-wide and proprietary funds. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
the governmental funds in the fund financial statements to the extent that the County has provided 
funding for leave to be taken in future years. 

6. Lone-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Issuance costs are 
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuance costs during the 
current period. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

7. Deferred Revenue 

In the government-wide statements, governmental funds and proprietary fund financial statements 
deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which 
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Deferred revenues arise when resources are received by 
the County before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant moneys are received prior to the incurrence 
of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or 
when the County has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and the 
revenue is recognized. 

Governmental funds also report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period or for resources that have been 
received, but not yet recognizable. 



8. Fund Equitv 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended December 3 1,20 1 1, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type De$nitions. The Statement provides more clearly defined fund 
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the County is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which fund balance amounts can be spent. The 
following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes 
for which resources can be used: 

Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid 
items, or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain intact. 

Restricted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by external parties 
(such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

Committed fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of the 
County Board. These constraints can only be removed or changed by the County Board using the 
same action that was used to create them. 

Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of County 
management. The County Board has authorized the County Administrator and the Finance Director 
to assign fund balance. Residual amounts in any governmental fund, other than the General Fund, 
are also reported as assigned, unless committed by County Board action. 

Unassigned fund balance - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive unassigned 
amounts are only reported in the General Fund. 

F. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect tha amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between find balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "some liabilities, including bonds 
and notes payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 
funds". The details of this $34,289,697 difference are as follows: 



Bonds and notes payable ($29,810,000) 
Capital leases (5 30,904) 
Accrued interest payable (1 56,329) 
Unfunded compensated absences (2,453,843) 
Other postemployment benefits (1,338,621) 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities ($34.289.697) 

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets 
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." The details of this $1,742,769 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay $8,427,32 1 
Depreciation expense (6,684,552) 
Net adjustment to decrease net changes inhnd balances - 
total governmentaljimds to arrive at changes in net assets 
of governmental activities $1.742.769 

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

The County prepares an annual operating and capital budget for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue, 
and the Enterprise and Internal Service funds. The capital projects and operating budget follow separate 
processes as indicated below: 

Department heads submit all capital outlay project requests and capital plan modifications to the Finance 
Committee by June 1. 

Prior to July 3 1, the Finance Committee presents the proposed five (5) - year capital plan to the County 
Board. 

The County Board reviews the five (5) - year capital plan and adopts the plan on or before September 
30. 

Prior to August 31, all department heads, with liaison committee approval, submit to the Finance 
Committee a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year which commences the following January 1. 
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of fmancing them. 



The Finance Committee makes capital and operating budget decisions, including proposed budget 
amendments, setting funding priorities during the month of September. 

On or before October 19, the Finance Committee submits the annual budget to the County Board, which 
commences the annual operating and capital budget review process. 

A public hearing is held during October concerning the proposed budget in conjunction with County 
Board deliberations on the annual budget, including capital budget appropriations. 

The County Board reviews and takes action on proposed budget amendments and adopts the budget by 
the second Tuesday in November. 

When developing budgetary data for presentation in the financial statements, County policy is followed which 
requires that budgeted appropriations by department within fund are approved by the County Board. Budget 
is defined as the originally approved budget, plus or minus approved modifications. Expenditures cannot 
legally exceed appropriations at the department level, pursuant to s.67.90, Wisconsin State Statutes. 
However, the County uses a more restrictive control in the form of appropriation units, defined as groups of 
account classes within department, including wages and benefits, operating expenses, interdepartmental 
charges and capital outlay. 

The adopted budgets for the general, certain special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds are 
prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Adopted budgets for proprietary funds are consistent with GAAP except that depreciation expense is not 
budgeted. A comparison of budget to actual is included in the accompanying financial statements for the 
general fund and any major special revenue funds. In order to keep this report from becoming unduly 
complex, the County has chosen not to present budget to actual data demonstrating compliance at the legal 
level of control for the enterprise and internal service funds in the document. 

Budgetary amounts lapse at year-end, except for unexpended appropriations for capital projects, which carry 
forward automatically to the ensuing year. The County Board, by resolution, can authorize the carry forward 
of prior year's unexpended operating and capital outlay appropriations to the following year. 

Level of Budgetary Control Reconciliation 

Special Revenue Funds - The County controls the expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds at two levels. 
The Public Health and Human Services Special Revenue fund consists of the Community Programs, 
Administration, Aging, Public Health and Social Services Funds which are budgeted annually. The second 
level of control is exercised over the Economic Development Special Revenue Fund, which is not budgeted. 
Individual expenditures are generally approved only if financial resources or grants funds are available. 

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Cash and Investments 

The County maintains cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for use by all 
funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed in the financial statements as "Cash and 
investments". 

Invested cash consists of deposits and investments that are restricted by the Wisconsin Statutes to the 
following: 



Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local governmental entities; 
statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and the Wisconsin local government 
investment pool. 

The carrying amount of the County's cash and investments totaled $37,446,184 at December 3 1, 201 1 as 
summarized below: 

Petty cash funds $12,715 
Deposits with financial institutions 1,913,152 
Investments 

Repurchase agreements 6,32 1,277 
Corporate issues 150,634 
U.S. government securities 23,388,675 
Wisconsin local government investment pool 5,659,731 

Total $37,446,184 

Reconciliation to the basic financial statements: 

Basic financial statements 
Cash and investments 

Fiduciary funds 
Agency fund 

Total 

Deposits and investments of the County are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussilon of the 
specific risks and the County's policy related to the risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 
a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the: event of 
the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover 
the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Wisconsin 
statutes require repurchase agreements to be fully collateralized by bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by 
the federal government or its instrumentalities. The County does not have an additional custodial credit risk 
policy. 

Deposits: Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for time and savings deposits and $250,000 
for demand deposits per official custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with financial 
institutions located outside the State of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 per 
official custodian per depository institution. In addition, the County's non-interest bearing transaction 
accounts are fully insured through December 31, 2012. Also the State of Wisconsin has a State Guarantee 
Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository above the amount provided by an agency 
of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation to 
the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available. 



federal depository insurance limits and uncollateralized. 

On December 3 1, 201 1 the County held repurchase agreement investments in the amount of $6,321,277 of 
which the underlying securities are held by the investment's counter party, not in the name of the County. 

Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the actual rating as of year end for each 
investment type. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the County contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external 
investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total County investments are as follows: 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. The County's investment portfolio is structured to provide a high total return 
giving consideration to risk and necessary availability of funds. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the County's investments to market interest rate 
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the County's investments by 
maturity: 
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As of December 31, 201 1, $539,303 of the County's deposits with financial institutions were in excess of 



Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations 

The County's investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate 
fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided above): 

Investment in Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool 

Highly Sensitive Investments 
Mortgage backed securities. These securities are subject to early payment in a 
period of declining interest rates. The resultant reduction in expected total cash 
flows affects the fair value of these securities and makes the fair values of these 
securities highly sensitive to changes in interest rates 

The County has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment pool of $5,659,731 at year-end. 
The Wisconsin local government investment pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and is 
managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports 
the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw their 
funds in total on one day's notice. At December 3 1,201 1, the fair value of the County's share of the LGIP's 
assets was substantially equal to the carrying value. 

Fair Value at' 
Year End 

$23,388,675 

B. Receivables 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) for the year ended December 3 1, 20 1 1 for the County's 
governmental activities (all major and nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds) and business- 
type activities (all enterprise funds) are as follows: 



ReceivaMes (net): 
Current year tax levy $ 20,936,663 $ 13,503,712 $ 5,681,302 $ $ 40,121,677 

Tax certificates 4,830,322 4,830,322 

Tax deeds 230,95 1 230,95 1 

Loans 766,9 10 661,667 1,428,577 

Interest 1,770,833 1,770,833 

Accounts 277,002 357,044 634,046 

AUowance for un- 

collectible accounts (157,284) (157,284) 

Total $ 28,812,681 $ 13,703,472 $ 5,681,302 $ 661,667 $ 48,859,122 - 

Receivables, net 
Current year tax levy $ 
Tax certificates 
Tax deeds 
Loans 
Interest 
Accounts 
Allowance for un- 

collectible accounts (228,946) 
Total $ 4,623,800 1,953,112 

Receivable balance of $1,506,727 is reported in Agency Fund. 



C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 3 1,201 1 was as follows: 

Gowrnmental activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 8,510,732 $ 142,635 $ (4,877) $ 8,648,490 

Construction in progress 1 1,999,467 7,734,502 (13,755,057) 5,978,912 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,510,199 7,877,137 (13,759,934) 14,627,402 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 62,697,298 309,797 (97,304) 62,909,79 1 

Improvements other than buildings 9,710,355 746,685 (6,909) 10,450,13 1 

Inhstructure 80,170,295 12,935,190 93,105,485 

Office Furniture and equipment 24,43 1,530 2,107,930 (6,000) 26,533,460 

Machinery and equipment 15,484,408 8 12,528 (328,374) 15,968,562 

Vehicles 9,6244 18 8 17,969 (368,124) 10,070,263 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 202,114,304 17,730,099 (806,711) 219,037,692 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings (35,263,425) (1,986,5 12) 90,357 (37,159,580) 

Improvements other than buildings (6,229,381) (457,561) 6,909 (6,a,033) 

Inhstructure (33,991,919) (2,727,659) (36,719,578) 

Oace  Furniture and equipment (19,695,032) (1,699,468) 6,000 (21,388,500) 

Machinery and equipment (1 1,073,850) (496,702) 252,134 (11,318,418) 

Vehicles (6,364,5041 (641,858) 339,366 (6,a99%) 

Total accumulated depreciation (112,618,111) (8,009,760) 694,766 (1 19,933,105) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 89,496,193 9,720,339 (1 1 1,945) 99,104,587 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1 10,006,392 $17,597,476 $ (13,871,879) 1 13,73 1,989 

Calculation of invested in capital assets, net of reIated debt, 

less of related long-termdebt outstanding (net of available bond proceeds of $5,529,708) 20,555,292 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 93,176,697 



Business-type activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Office Furniture and equipment 

Machinery and equipment 

Vehicles 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Office hmiture and equipment 

Machinery and equipment 

Vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Business-ty pe activities capital assets, net 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the County as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Public health and human services 
Public works 
Resources and development 
Education 
General government 
Public safety 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 
Internal service fund depreciation 

Total increase in accumulated depreciation 

Business-type activities: 
Rocky Knoll Health Care 

Construction Commitment 

The County has several unfinished construction projects in progress as of December 3 1,201 1. Major projects 
include airport improvements, replacement of enterprise service in our Information Systems department and 
roadway improvements. At year-end the County had contracts outstanding for work to be done of $34,371. 
General obligation bonds are financing these projects. 



D. Interfund Receivables, Pavables and Transfers 

Interfund receivables and payables between individual funds of the County, as reported in the fund financial 
statements, as of December 3 1, 201 1 are detailed below: 

Temporary Cash Advances to Finance Operating Cash Deficits o f  
Other Funds 

General Fund $ 86,639 

Debt Service Funds $ 23,312 

Highway Fund 

Transfers are used to: 1) move unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various 
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations; 2) move revenues from 
the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is required or allowed to expend them; and 3) move 
receipts restricted to or allowed for debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service 
hnds as debt service payments become due. 

, , Fund 

General Fund $ $ 15,533 $7,427 $ 1,305 $ 35,104 

Public Health and 3,780,902 

Human Services 

Debt Service 84,000 
Sunny Ridge Health Care 1,232,320 

Internal Service Funds 189,000 

Total $ 5,286,222 $ 15,533 $ 7,427 $ 1,305 $ 35,104 - 



E. Leases 

The County oversees the overall operation of the airport, and is lessor of the facility under various operating 
leases for periods ranging from 2012 through 2056. Although some operating leases extend as far as 2056, 
rates are re-negotiated either every three (3) or five (5) years. The table below represents current negotiated 
rates, none of which extend beyond the year 201 3. 

$1 24,338 
19,895 

Total $144,233 

F. DEFERRED REVENUES 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental, proprietary and internal 
service funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet 
earned. At the end of the current year, the various components of deferred revenue in all funds were as 
follows: 

Cowrnmental activities 

Current year tax levy receivable: 

General fiind $ $ 20,936,663 $ 20,936,663 

Public health and human services 13,503,712 13,503,712 

Debt service fiind 5,681,302 5,68 1,302 

Delinquent property t a x s  - County portion 1,132,613 

Interest receivable on delinquent property taxes 1,672,664 

Development loans receivable 

Revenue collected in advance 

Subtotal 

Cowrnmental activities - internal service fund 

Subsequent year taxlevy receivable: 

Revenue coUected in advance 1,155 1,155 

Subtotal 4,448,880 4,448,880 

Subtotal - gowrnmental activities 3,466,944 44,827,288 48,294,232 

Business-type activity 

Subsequent year tax levy receivable: 

Rocky Knoll Health Care Center 686,s 12 686,s 12 

Total $ 3,466,944 $ 45,513,800 $ 48,980,744 - - 



G. Long-Term Obligations 

Changes in Long-Tern Obligations 

Long-tern obligation activity for the year ended December 3 1,201 1 was as follows: 

Balance 
Gowrnmental actiities: 

General obligation debt: 

Bonds $ 7,965,000 $ $ (795,000) $ 7,170,000 $ 800,000 

Notes 27,235,000 (4,595,000) 22,640,000 4,625,000 
7 

Total general obligation debt 35,200,000 (5,390,000) 29,810,000 5,425,000 

Capit a1 leases 684,630 (153,726) 530,904 153,726 

Compensated absences 6,510,916 936,556 (920,7 1 1) 6,526,761 185,987 

Other postemployment benefits 1,438,508 199,581 1,638,089 

Governmental activities - 
long-term liabilities $ 43,149,424 $ 1,820,767 $ (6,464,437) $ 38,505,754 $ 5,764,713 - -- 

Business-type Actiity 

Compensated absences $ 1,730,088 $ 220,192 $ (595,250) $ 1,355,030 $ 3,461 

Other postemployment benefits 54 1,468 82,956 624,424 

Business-type Activity - 
long-term liabilities $ 2,271,556 $ 303,148 $ (595,250) $ 1,979,454 $ 3,461 

Governmental activities 

General Obligation Debt 

General obligation debt currently outstanding is detailed as follows: 

Notes: 

$5,000,000 - Series 2002, balance due May 1,2012; interest 4.25% 

$8,820,000 - Series 2004, various amounts due through May 1,2015; 
interest 3.625% - 3.875% 

$7,255,000 - Series 2006, various amounts due through February 1,2016; 
interest 3.75% - 4.00% 

$8,000,000 - Series 2008, various amounts due through May 1,201 8; 
interest 3.75% - 4.25% 

$3,8 15,000 - Series 20 10 issued under the Build America Bond Program, 
various amounts due through May 1,20 13; interest 1.70% - 2.35% 

Amount 

$ 565,000 

2,330,000 



$4,185,000 - Series 2010 issued under the Recovery Zone Economic Development 
Bond program, various amounts due through May 1,20 19; interest 2.35% - 4.55% 4,185,000 

$6,385,000 - Series 20 10 issued under the Build America Bond program, 
various amounts due through May 1,2020; interest 1.25% - 3.85% 6,385.000 

$22,640,000 
Refunding Bonds: 

$6,000,000 - Series 2003, balance due May 1,2012; interest 5.10% $3 65,000 

$5,685,000 - Series 2004, various amounts due through December 1,2019; 3,445,000 
interest 3.75% - 4.20% 

$3,455,000 - Series 2010, various amounts due through May 1,2019; 3.360,OOQ 
interest 1 .lo% - 3.42% $7,170,000 

Total general obligation debt outstanding $29,810,000 

The annual principal and interest payments on all debt, except capital leases, compensated absences md other post- 
employment benefits as of December 3 l ,20  1 1, are as follows: 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

Total 

Build America Bond 

The general obligation debt issued on April 6,20 10 and November 9,20 10 qualifies as Build America Bonds, 
as described in Section 54AA of the Internal Revenue Code. The interest on the debt is taxable as set forth in 
the regulations. The County is eligible to receive a 35% subsidy of the annual interest payment from the 
Federal government. In order to receive this subsidy it is necessary for the County to file a claim form semi- 
annually. 



Recovew Zone Economic Development Bonds I 

The general obligation debt issued on April 6, 2010 qualifies as Recovery Zone Economic De elopment 
Bonds, as described in Section 54AA of the Internal Revenue Code. The interest on the debt is tax ! ble as set 
forth in the regulations. The County is eligible to receive a 45% subsidy of the annual interest payment from 
the Federal government. In order to receive this subsidy it is necessary for the County to file a claim form 
semi-annually. 

Capital Lease 

In January of 201 1, the County entered into capital lease agreements to finance the acquisition of dispatch and 
record management system equipment and software upgrade for recording of property deeds. The leases are 
non-interest bearing and annual principal maturities are as follows: 

Legal Margin for New Debt 

By statute, the County's outstanding general obligation debt is restricted to 5% of the equalized value of all 
property in the County. Based upon an equalized value of $8,894,478,600 the County is restricted to 
$444,723,930 of general obligation debt. At December 3 1, 201 1, $29,8 10,000 of general obligation debt was 
outstanding. There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures and 
loan agreements. The County is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

In prior years, the County advance refunded $1,990,000 of various general obligation note issues. As a result, 
the refunded notes are also considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the County's 
Statement of Net Assets. 

At December 3 1, 201 1, $470,000 of outstanding general obligation notes are considered defeased, as 
summarized below: 



General Obligation Debt 

Notes 

Series 1999 Aa2 

Series 2000 Aa2 

Series 20001 Aa2 

Series 2002 Aa2 

Series 2004 Aa2 

Series 2006 Aa2 

Total 

Other Postemployment Benefits 

The County's group health insurance plan provides coverage to active employees and retirees at blended 
premium rates. This results in an other postemployment benefit (OPEB) for the retirees, commonly referred 
to as an implicit rate subsidy, 

The County's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County's 
annual OPEB cost for the year: 

Annual required contribution $526,372 
Interest on OPEB Obligation 79,038 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (109,874) 

Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions made 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 1,979,976 

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $2.262.5 13 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for 20 1 1 and 20 10 were as follows: 



As of December 3 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $5,007,013, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $5,007,013. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates for the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events for into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
plan and annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan is 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that 
point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility 
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of 
the calculations. 

In the December 3 1, 20 10 actuarial valuation, the Unit Credit Method was used. The actuarial assumptions 
included a 4 percent investment rate of return. The initial healthcare trend rate was 9.3% for m~dical and 
5.3% for dental, reduced ratably to an ultimate rate of 4.7% for medical and 4.0% for dental. The UAAL is 
being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 
31, 201 1 was 30 years. For purposes of this valuation, costs through full eligibility age for the benefits 
provided have been accrued. 

H. Fund Equitv 

In the fund financial statements, portions of governmental fund balances are nonspendable because amounts 
are not in spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid items, or long-term receivables) or legally or 
contractually required to remain intact. At December 3 1,201 1 fund balance was nonspendable as follows: 

General Fund 
Nonspendable 

Prepaids and Inventory 
Delinquent property taxes 

Total 

Public Health and Human Services 
Nonspendable 

Prepaids and Inventory 



Also in the find financial statements, portions of governmental fund balances are restricted by external parties 
(such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. At December 
3 1,20 1 1 fund balance was restricted as follows: 

General Fund 
Restricted 

Jail Assessment Fees 
Land Record Fees 

Total 

Debt Service Fund 
Restricted 

Debt Service 

Capital Projects Fund 
Restricted 

Capital Project Expenditures 

Revolving Loan Fund 
Restricted 

Community Development 

Also in the fund financial statements portions of governmental fund balances are committed by County Board 
action. At December 3 1,201 1 fund balance was committed as follows: 

General Fund 
Committed 

UW Extension Funds 
County Airport Funds 
Stewardship Funds 

Total 

Public Health and Human Services 
Committed 

Subsequent years' expenditures 

Also in the fund financial statements portions of governmental fund balances are assigned by County Board 
action. At December 3 1,201 1 fund balance was assigned as follows: 

General Fund 
Assigned 

Subsequent years' expenditures $49 1.373 

Public Health and Human Services 
Assigned 

Public health and human services programs $1,000,000 
Public safety programs 15,533 

Total $1.015.533 



Finally in the fund financial statements portions of governmental fund balances are in excess of 1 
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. At December 31, 201 1 fund balance was unassigned as 
follows: 

General Fund 
Unassigned fund balance $12,053.878 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County maintains an insurance program to safeguard its financial security by protecting its human, 
financial and property assets from the adverse impact of loss. Various techniques and programs are utilized to 
reduce the possibility of a loss from occumng and manage the adverse consequences should an event occur 
resulting in a loss, including safety and loss control practices, contractual risk transfer, self insurance funding 
and the purchase of insurance. 

Public Entity Risk Pool 

During 1987, the County together with other counties in the State of Wisconsin, created the Wisconsin 
County Municipal Mutual Insurance Company (WCMIC), to provide liability insurance to its members. 
WCMIC also provides bodily and personal injury, and errors and omissions coverage for the County. 
WCMIC is governed by one entity-one vote and includes counties of varying size. Only member entities 
participate in governing WCMIC. The actuary for WCMIC determines the charge per $1,000 of ratable 
governmental expenditures required to pay the expected losses and loss adjustment expenses on which 
premiums are based. The County's self-insured retention limit is $250,000 aggregate. Claims payable at 
year-end are $1 34,400 and IBNR7s are estimated to be immaterial. 

Claims Liability WCMIC 2010 2011 
Unpaid claims, including IBNR7s - beginning of year $1 57,478 $87,594 
Current year claims and changes in estimates (2, 145) 130,010 
Claim payments (67,739) (83,204) 
Unpaid claims - end of year $87,594 $134.400 

Self-Insurance - Worker's Compensation 

The County has also established a program for worker's compensation. All funds of the County participate in 
this program. Worker's Compensation is part of the Insurance Internal Service Fund and is maintained to 
provide for self-insured worker's compensation insurance coverage and employee safety and loss control 
programs. The County contracts with a third party claims administrator for the purpose of adjudicating 
worker's compensation claims. An excess insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of the 
County's $300,000 self-insured retention up to $500,000 per claim. Settled claims have not exceeded the 
commercial coverage in any of the past three years. Costs associated with the worker's compensation 
program are billed to other County departments based on actual wages and include amounts necessary to fund 
current and prior year claims to be paid in the current year and in the future. At December 3 1, 201 1, the 
County has established a future claims insurance reserve in the amount of $1,237,991 to fund the estimated 
liability for the County's self insured retention limits. 

A liability for a claim is established if information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss are reasonably estimable. Liabilities 
include an amount for claims that have been incurred, but not reported. 
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Claims Liability 2010 2011 
Unpaid claims - Beginning of year $147,564 $140,336 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 59,567 257,484 
Claims payments (66,795) (154,643) 
Unpaid claims - End of year $140.336 $243.1 77 

Self-Insurance - Health and Dental Coverage 

The County has also established a self-insurance program for health and dental claims. Claims are accounted 
for in the Insurance Internal Service Fund, and are processed by a third party claims administrator. 

The uninsured risk of loss is $250,000 per individual claim for health insurance. The County has purchased 
stop-loss insurance for claims in excess of those amounts. In addition, the health insurance claim payments 
shown below include self-funded dental payments of $1,116,789. 

All funds of the County participate in the health care coverage program. Amounts payable to the Insurance 
Internal Service Fund are based on estimates of the amounts necessary to pay prior and current year claims. 

A liability for a claim is established if information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss are reasonable estimable. Liabilities 
include an amount for claims that have been incurred, but not reported. 

Claims Liability 2010* m* 
Unpaid claims - Beginning of year $3,081,643 $2,465,181 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 17,274,086 19,330,142 
Claims payments (1 7,890.548) J19.394.7001 
Unpaid claims - End of year $2.465.18 1 $2.400:623 

* Includes administrative costs 

B. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLAN 

All eligible Sheboygan County employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System ("WRS"), a cost- 
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system (PERS). All permanent 
employees hired before July 1, 201 1 and expected to work over 600 hours a year or hired on or after July 1, 
201 1 and expected to work over 1200 hours a year are eligible to participate in the WRS. Covered employees 
in the General category are required by statute to contribute 5.8% of their salary (6.65% for Executives and 
Elected Officials, 5.8% for Protective Occupation with Social Security, and 5.8% for Protective without 
Social Security) to the plan. Employers may make these contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. 
Employers are required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining 
projected cost of future benefits. 

The payroll for Sheboygan County employees covered by WRS for the year ended December 31, 201 1, was 
$38,303,257; the employer's total payroll was $39,803,881. The total required contribution for the year 
ended December 31, 201 1 was $4,714,055 which consisted of $3,865,783 or 10.1% percent of covered 
payroll from the employer and $848,272 or 2.2% of covered payroll from employees. Total contributions for 



the years ending December 3 1, 20 10 and 2009 were $4,503,132 and $4,452,738 respectively, equal to the 1 
required contributions for each year. 

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials, 54 for protective occupation employees with 
less than 25 years of service and 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25 years of service) 
are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation 
employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the benefit are (1) final average 
earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final average earnings is the average of 
the employee's three highest years earnings. Employees terminating covered employment and submitting 
application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing 
so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 
1990 and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is 
required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 
1998 are immediately vested. 

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and the amount of all 
benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report, 
which may be obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 793 1, Madison, WI 
53707-793 1. 

C. PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT 

Wisconsin Act 25 imposed a limit on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin cities, villages, towns and 
counties for a two-year period effective July 27, 2005. Subsequent legislation has extended the levy limit 
through 2013. The current law limits the increase in the maximum allowable tax levy to the greater of the 
percentage change in the County's January 1 equalized value as a result of net new construction or 0% for the 
2012 budget year. The actual limit for the County for the 2012 budget was .59%. Debt service for debt 
authorized after July 1,2005 is exempt from the levy limit. In addition, the Act allows the limit to be adjusted 
for the increase in debt service authorized prior to July 1,2005 and in certain other situations. 

D. LITIGATION 

From time to time, the County is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and Corporation 
Counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect 
on the County's financial position or results of operation. 

E. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The County has received Federal and State grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 
the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. County management believes such disallowances, if any, 
would be immaterial. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
Other Postemployment Benefiis Plan 
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 1 

201 0 $ - $ 5,007,013 0% $ 5,007,013 NIA NIA 
2008 10,188,796 0% 1 0,188,796 NIA NIA 

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended December 31,2008. Information for prior 
years is not available. 

The decrease in the actuarial accrued liability between 201 0 and 2008 as presented above is due to implementation of 
benefit changes. Retiree contributions have been increased and the maximum age to receive benefits has been reduced 
from age 70 to age 65. 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 1 

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2008. Information for prior years is not available. 
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



County of Sheboygan, WI Special Revenue Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheet Total Nonmajor 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds Public Communiiy Governmental 
December 31, 201 I safe@ Development Funds 

Assets 
Cash 8 Investments 

Long Term Receivables, net 

Total Assets 

Liabilities & Fund Balances 
Accounts Payable 
Deferred Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 

Restricted 

Assigned 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances Special Revenue Funds Totnl Nonmajor 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds Public Community Governmental 
For the Year Ended December 31,2011 s a f e  Development Funds 

Revenues 
Public Charges for Services 

Interest and Other Revenue 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Cumnt: 

Resources and Development 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers In 

Total Other Financing Sources 
Net Change in Fund Balances 
Fund Balances - Beginning 
Fund Balances -Ending 



County of Sheboygan, WI Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds 
Statement of Net Assets Employee Information 
Internal Service Funds Benejirs & Systems & 

December 31, 201 1 Insurance Printing Highway Total 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash 8. Investments 

Receivables (net) 

Due From External Parties 

Prepaids 8. Inventory 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 

Capital assets: 
Land 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Accrued Compensation 

Deferred Revenue 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 
Due In More Than One Year 

Insurance and Other Reserves 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 



Sheboygan County, WI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Internal Service Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2011 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 

Intergovernmental charges for services 

Fines, forfeits and penalties 

lnterdepartmental revenue 

Miscellaneous operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Personnel related 

Purchased services 

Repairs 8 maintenance 

General operating 

Interdepartmental expenses 

Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
lntergovernmental contractdgrants 

Property tax appropriation 

Rental Income 

Gain on disposal of capital assets 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 

Capital Contribution (County) 

Transfers In 

Transfer Out 

Change in net assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 

Total Net Assets - Ending 

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds 

Employee In  formation 

Benefds & Systems & 
Insurance Printing High way Total 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Internal Service Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31,201 1 

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds 
Employee Information 
Benejits & Systems & 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
Insurance Printing Highway Total 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Receipts from customers and users 

Receipts from interfund services provided 

Other operating cash receipts 

Payments to suppliers 
Other sources (uses) of cash 

Payments to employees 

Payments for interfund services used 
Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Intergovernmental contractdgrants 3.062.665 3,062,865 
Property tax appropriation received 4,339,712 4,339,712 
Transfer in 35.104 35.104 
Transfer out (189,000) (189,000) 

Net cash provided by noncapital 
financing activities 7,248,481 7,248,481 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 890 178,362 179,252 
Purchases of capital assets (86.229) (856,068) (942,297) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

Rental income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in 
cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - January 1 
Cash and cash equivalents - December 31 



Reconciliation of operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activites: 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided (used) 

by operating activites: 

Depreciation (net of amortization) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other governments 

Inventories and prepayments 

Accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 

Due to other funds 

Due to other governments 

Compensated absences payable 

Net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities 

Noncash investing, capital and 
financing activities 

Contribution of capital assets by County 



County of Sheboygan, WI 
Schedule of Changes in Assets 

and Liabilities 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended December 31. 201 1 

ADDITIONS 
Cash and investments 
Receivables 
Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Deposits 
Due to other governments 
Total deductions 

Net increase (decrease) 
Total Assets - Beginning 
Total Assets - Ending 

Jail Sheriff Treasurer UW Extension Land 8 Patient 
Clerk of Inmates General Trust Trust Water Trust Trust - 

Courts Trust Trust Trust Account Account Account Rocky Knoll Total 


